
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
April 1, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 4, 2010 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.   
 







Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Letter dated March 11, 2010, from the Sonoma County 


Water Agency re (SCWA) Petition for Permanent and Temporary Urgency 
Change of Decision 1610, including presentation by SCWA staff. (Est. time 30 
min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2010-11 Operating and Capital Budget and 


Discussion of long-term effects of various rate strategies (Est. time 30 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Unneeded District lands strategy (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Introduction by reading of title Ordinance 44, Making 


Changes to Policy Numbers 3020, 3080, and 3090 of the District’s Policy and 
Procedures Providing for Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter 
Tampering (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
E. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution10-08, Waiving Policy 3700.20 and 


Approving a Contract for the Replacement of Filter Media for the Monte Rio Filter 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
 (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case:  John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
    SCV 240790 
 
 B. Conference with re Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.8) 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
  Under negotiation: Terms and price 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 


 2







 3


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
March 4, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District Counsel. 
      Dan Fein 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:31 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:36 p.m.) 
 
Director Smith moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Wikle seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 4, 2010 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 


 


 1







 D. Adoption of Resolution 10-04, Accepting an Easement Deed from Osiride A. 
Fazzi and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute and Cause to be 
Recorded a Certificate of Acceptance; and  


 
  Resolution 10-05, Accepting an Easement Deed from Gregory L. Marino and 


Authorizing the General Manager to Execute and Cause to be Recorded a 
Certificate of Acceptance; and 


 
  Resolution 10-06, Accepting an Easement Deed from Erik and Karen Beyer and 


Authorizing the General Manager to Execute and Cause to be Recorded a 
Certificate of Acceptance 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Dan Fein. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.) 


A. (6:39 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-07, Approving the Construction 
Project Budget and Authorizing the Award of Contract for the CIP Phase IV-B, 
Project 1, and Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of 
$92,833 and Single Change Order Approval up to $25,000.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve 
Resolution 10-07, Approving the Construction Project Budget and Authorizing the Award 
of Contract for the CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1, and Authorizing the General Manager Total 
Change Order Approval of $92,833 and Single Change Order Approval up to $25,000  
Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


B. (6:53 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2010-11 Operating and Capital Budget.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


C. (7:30 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Implementing a toilet rebate program.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made 
by Dan Fein.  Director Wikle moved to approve District funding of a Toilet Rebate 
Program after pursuing grant funding for the Program.  Director Smith seconded.  Further 
discussion ensued.  Director Smith withdrew her second.  Director Schaap moved to 
approve the Toilet Rebate Program proposed by the GM, but with a program termination 
of when the proposed allocated money ($10,000) is exhausted or December 31, 2010, 
whichever comes first.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


D. (8 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Conducting an RFP for auditing services.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  General counsel Mike Gogna added further 
comments.  Board discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:08 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. Petition to stop Eel River diversions 
6. JM Eagle plastic pipe defects 
 


 2







 3


 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  


(8:23 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle requested that the Gantt chart be reviewed by the GM during the General 
Manager’s Report. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:25 p.m.) 
 
At 8:25 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:26 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session. At 8:43 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al.  
  No action was taken. 
 
 B. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:43 p.m.) 
 
1. FY 2010-11 Budget, including longterm analysis of various rate strategies 
2. Labor negotiations 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:46 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:36 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:08 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:23 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:25 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:43 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY PETITION TO CHANGE WATER 
RIGHTS DECISION 1610    
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  a. Receive a presentation from Sonoma County 
Water Agency (SCWA) staff regarding the SCWA petition to change Water Rights 
Decision 1610 (D1610). 


 
b.  Discuss and consider action on filing a protest to the petition to change 


D1610. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Possible legal and analysis costs. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
D1610 is the State Water Resources Control Board water rights decision that 
governs flows in the Russian River.  It mandates flows at various locations in the 
Russian River at various times of the year.  The triggers for the various flows are 
based in part by water levels in Lake Mendocino and Lake Sonoma and on 
seasonal water needs.  Flow in the Russian River has historically been supported 
by diversions from the Eel River.  Those diversions have been decreased in recent 
years, but the flow requirements for the River and triggers for those flows haven 
not changed.   
 
Another recent change is the flow requirements required by the Biological Opinion 
(BO) on the endangered and threatened fish species in the Russian River.  The 
BO mandates that summer flows in the lower River be reduced below the D1610 
requirements to provide summer habitat for the endangered and threatened fish 
species.  My understanding is that these lower flows are expected to allow the 
sand barrier at the mouth of the Russian River at the ocean to remain intact 
which would provide for fresher water in the estuary behind the sand barrier and 
this would be better for oversummering salmonids (the fish species of concern).   
The petition to change D1610 requests that D1610 be changed to allow the 
minimum flows required by the BO and nothing else (Exhibit 1).  The public 
notice for the petition states that the deadline for protests to the petition is April 
12, 2010. 
 
Since the BO was issued, SCWA has been requesting Temporary Urgency 
Changes (TUC) to D1610 on an annual basis to allow for these lower summer 







SCWA PETITION TO CHANGE D1610    2   
April 1, 2010                                                                 


 


flows.  This past summer the TUC requested lower flows associated with 
extremely dry conditions based on the water levels in Lake Mendocino.  These 
lower flows were not based on BO flow requirements and interestingly, the sand 
barrier, once opened by SCWA (work done by another arm of that agency), did 
not close up again until mid September.  Water users in the Russian River were 
required by the State Board to take extraordinary water conservation measures 
for an event that was not that unusual.   
 
The events of last year demonstrated that D1610 no longer works for the Russian 
River.  It was a low rainfall year, but not so low that emergency measures should 
have been necessary.  The Lake Mendocino water levels called out as triggers by 
D1610 no longer work.  The entire flow, monitoring, and triggering system needs 
a examination to determine what works best for the entire watershed, but that is 
not happening with this change petition.  Nothing in this petition will prevent a 
reoccurrence of last summer’s events given similar weather.   
 
There are many issues with the Russian River.  Changing D1610 to solve all the 
flow-related issues would be a monumental task, but it needs to be done.  SCWA 
may have made a decision to request this relatively small change because the 
larger, needed task is too difficult, too expensive, and too uncertain (Eel River 
diversions may be further reduced in the future). 
 
Entering a protest to the petition means the District can participate in this quasi-
judicial water rights process.  It means the District would bear responsibility to 
present a counter position to the petition.  It would also take to Sacramento, 
before the State Water Resources Control Board, a discussion that perhaps could 
better be done here in Sonoma County.   
 
SCWA staff will be at the April 1 meeting to give a presentation on their petition 
and to answer questions.  The Board can consider the SCWA staff presentation 
and responses to questions as part of the decision of whether to protest the 
petition.   











 







 







 





		Item V-A SCWA Petition to Change D1610

		Meeting Date : April 1, 2010 



		Item V-A.1 - Letter from SCWA

		Item V-A.2 - Exhibit to staff report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B.   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2010-11 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET; DISCUSSION OF 
LONG-TERM EFFECTS OF VARIOUS RATE STRATEGIES   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on the draft FY 2010-11 
Operating and Capital Budget, including a review of the analysis of the effects of various 
rate strategies. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
At the March Board meeting, staff presented the draft budget which includes the 
recommendation that there not be a rate increase for the 2010-11 fiscal year 
(FY11).  The District wants to get to a revenue position whereby annual rates, 
fees, and assessments fund a reasonable, sustainable annual capital program and 
in the past I have suggested that this would mean a Transfers to CIRF in the 
Operating Budget of approximately $500,000.  Not having a rate increase in FY11 
does not further this objective, particularly with the continual rise of District 
expenses.  The Board requested a presentation on the long-term effects of not 
having a rate increase for the FY11 fiscal year would have on the capital 
program.     
 
The approach for this analysis was to use the long-term capital planning 
spreadsheet as a base for examining several water rate scenarios.  The long-term 
spreadsheet was changed to include several revenue and expense line items from 
the Operating Budget to show the changes of the scenarios and the assumptions 
of the analyses.   
 
Assumptions: 
 


• Salaries and Benefits will increase 3% per year.  The historical annual 
change since 2003 has been 4.1% (historical data shown in Figure 1). 


• Services and Supplies will increase 1% per year.  The historical annual 
change since 2003 has been 0.8%.  (also shown in Figure 1). 


• Water Sales will be flat – the only factor in water sales revenue is the rate 
increase.   


• Fixed Assets will be $20,000 per year allowing for a new truck every other 
year.   







LONG-TERM EFFECTS OF VARIOUS RATE STRATEGIES 2   
April 1, 2010                                                                 


• The Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) will increase 25% per year 
starting in FY13 to a maximum of $404,300.  This will provide full recovery 
of debt payments from the CDRC and the annual assessment by FY15.  


• The rate increase for water use charges and the base rate is the same for 
every year in each of the analyses – that is, the 2% scenario is 2% for 
every year of the analysis.  The recent District approach has been to 
increase the water use charges and base rate according to the San 
Francisco consumer price index (CPI) which varies from year to year.    


 
Of course, any of these assumptions can be challenged.  At the meeting I intend 
to have this rate analysis model available and other scenarios and assumptions 
can be reviewed. 
 
Five rate scenario worksheets are attached.  The first rate scenario shows the 
effect of having a 1.8% rate increase for FY11 (the February 2010 CPI value) - 
this coming fiscal year, and which we are not planning to do – and having a 2.5% 
annual increase through the rest of the five year planning period through FY15.  
The key rows to consider are in yellow – the Transfer to CIRF row and the Funds 
Above District Policy row.     
 
The next four rate scenarios show the effects of no rate increase for FY11 with 
following 4-year annual rate increases of 2%, 2.5%, 3%, and 3.5%, respectively.  
Some observations: 
 


• Comparing the initial scenario of 1.8% increase for FY11 and 2.5% for the 
four following years with the scenario that has no rate increase for FY11 
and 2.5% for the four following years shows a difference in the FY15 
Transfers to CIRF of approximately $35,000 and a five-year difference of 
approximately $167,000.  At the 2.5% increase rate, Transfers to CIRF 
increase about $9,000 per year.   


• A 3% rate increase scenario results in similar FY15 Transfers to CIRF 
amounts and is off approximately $67,000 for the five year period.  The 
higher rate increase means the 3% approach would overtake the initial 
scenario fairly soon.    


• Having no rate increase for FY11 and then 2% through the planning period 
results in a decreasing Transfers to CIRF and Funds Above District Policy in 
the negative at the end of FY11, under the assumptions used.  This is not a 
sustainable approach.   


 
The analysis shows that the District can forego a rate increase in FY11 and still 
maintain progress toward a sustainable capital program.  Annual rate increases 
that follow generally the CPI can develop the revenue needed for this.  The 
District should continue to seek grants to supplement ratepayer revenues.  That 
will help the District get to a sustainable level sooner.      
 


 







LONG-TERM EFFECTS OF VARIOUS RATE STRATEGIES 3   
April 1, 2010                                                                 


 


 


Figure 1.  Historical District Expenses
Salary and Benefits, and Services and Supplies


$0


$200,000


$400,000


$600,000


$800,000


$1,000,000


$1,200,000


FY03-05 FY04-05 FY05-06 FY06-07 FY07-08 FY08-09 FY09-10P


Sal&Ben
Serv&Sup


 







 Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Evaluation of Water Rate Scenarios 


FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE Rate Increase


Water Use and Base Rate         1,796,000 1,801,860 1,846,907    1,893,079     1,940,406   1,988,916   2.5%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge**            227,000 227,000 227,000       283,750        354,688      404,300      see ** below


  OTHER REVENUE            131,000 119,200          120,000       110,000        110,000      110,000      
TOTAL REVENUE 2,154,000       2,148,060       2,193,907      2,286,829       2,405,094     2,503,216     


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS         1,035,010 1,051,800       1,083,354    1,115,855     1,149,330   1,183,810   3% increase
SERVICES & SUPPLIES            524,402 536,080          541,441       546,855        552,324      557,847      1% increase
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,559,412       1,587,880       1,624,795      1,662,710       1,701,654     1,741,657     


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 594,588          560,180          569,112         624,119          703,440        761,559        
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES                5,700 1,050 20,000         20,000          20,000        20,000        one truck per 2 years
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS           547,000 507,000          534,112     589,119      668,440      726,559    


Transfer to CIRF            320,000           280,000           307,112            305,369          313,752          322,259 
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 2,112,112 2,095,930 2,178,907 2,271,829 2,390,094 2,488,216


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 41,888            52,130            15,000           15,000            15,000          15,000          
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        292,130$        282,112$       280,369$        288,752$      297,259$      
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$       782,000$        782,000$      782,000$      
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$       283,750$        354,688$      404,300$      
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          76,084$         49,231$          27,844$        13,631$        
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$       -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$       1,030,000$     680,000$      470,000$      


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,866,130$     2,512,755$    2,425,350$     2,133,284$   1,967,190$   


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$    1,091,314$     1,091,314$   1,091,314$   
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $     1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$    1,265,000$     974,000$      807,000$      
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$         40,000$          40,000$        40,000$        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$    2,396,314$     2,105,314$   1,938,314$   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        174,816$        26,441$         29,036$          27,970$        28,876$        


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,705,281$     2,351,722$    1,350,758$     698,728$      257,604$      
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$               
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,470,841$     2,351,722$    1,350,758$     698,728$      257,604$      
* Net Operating Revenues includes Transfers to Other Funds plus Surplus/Deficit minus CDRC and Transfers to In-House Construction and Building Fund
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to max of $404,300 to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP Planning Budget, Including FY 11 1.8% Rate Increase and 
2.5% beyond 


EXPENSES







 Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Evaluation of Water Rate Scenarios 


FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE Rate Increase


Water Use and Base Rate         1,796,000 1,770,000 1,805,400    1,841,508     1,878,338   1,915,905   2.0%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge**            227,000 227,000 227,000       283,750        354,688      404,300      see ** below


  OTHER REVENUE            131,000 119,200          120,000       110,000        110,000      110,000      
TOTAL REVENUE 2,154,000       2,116,200       2,152,400      2,235,258       2,343,026     2,430,205     


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS         1,035,010 1,051,800       1,083,354    1,115,855     1,149,330   1,183,810   3% increase
SERVICES & SUPPLIES            524,402 536,080          541,441       546,855        552,324      557,847      1% increase
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,559,412       1,587,880       1,624,795      1,662,710       1,701,654     1,741,657     


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 594,588          528,320          527,605         572,548          641,372        688,548        
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES                5,700 1,050 20,000         20,000          20,000        20,000        one truck per 2 years
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS           547,000 507,000          492,605     537,548      606,372      653,548    


Transfer to CIRF            320,000           280,000           265,605            253,798          251,684          249,248 
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 2,112,112 2,095,930 2,137,400 2,220,258 2,328,026 2,415,205


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 41,888            20,270            15,000           15,000            15,000          15,000          
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        260,270$        240,605$       228,798$        226,684$      224,248$      
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$       782,000$        782,000$      782,000$      
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$       283,750$        354,688$      404,300$      
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          75,287$         47,376$          24,654$        8,810$          
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$       -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$       1,030,000$     680,000$      470,000$      


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,834,270$     2,470,452$    2,371,925$     2,068,026$   1,889,357$   


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$    1,091,314$     1,091,314$   1,091,314$   
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $     1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$    1,265,000$     974,000$      807,000$      
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$         40,000$          40,000$        40,000$        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$    2,396,314$     2,105,314$   1,938,314$   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        142,956$        (15,862)$        (24,389)$         (37,288)$       (48,957)$       


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,673,421$     2,277,559$    1,223,170$     505,882$      (13,075)$       
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$               
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,438,981$     2,277,559$    1,223,170$     505,882$      (13,075)$       
* Net Operating Revenues includes Transfers to Other Funds plus Surplus/Deficit minus CDRC and Transfers to In-House Construction and Building Fund
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to max of $404,300 to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP Planning Budget, Including Rate Increase 


EXPENSES







 Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Evaluation of Water Rate Scenarios 


FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE Rate Increase


Water Use and Base Rate         1,796,000 1,770,000 1,814,250    1,859,606     1,906,096   1,953,749   2.5%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge**            227,000 227,000 227,000       283,750        354,688      404,300      see ** below


  OTHER REVENUE            131,000 119,200          120,000       110,000        110,000      110,000      
TOTAL REVENUE 2,154,000       2,116,200       2,161,250      2,253,356       2,370,784     2,468,049     


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS         1,035,010 1,051,800       1,083,354    1,115,855     1,149,330   1,183,810   3% increase
SERVICES & SUPPLIES            524,402 536,080          541,441       546,855        552,324      557,847      1% increase
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,559,412       1,587,880       1,624,795      1,662,710       1,701,654     1,741,657     


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 594,588          528,320          536,455         590,646          669,130        726,392        
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES                5,700 1,050 20,000         20,000          20,000        20,000        one truck per 2 years
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS           547,000 507,000          501,455     555,646      634,130      691,392    


Transfer to CIRF            320,000           280,000           274,455            271,896          279,442          287,092 
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 2,112,112 2,095,930 2,146,250 2,238,356 2,355,784 2,453,049


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 41,888            20,270            15,000           15,000            15,000          15,000          
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        260,270$        249,455$       246,896$        254,442$      262,092$      
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$       782,000$        782,000$      782,000$      
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$       283,750$        354,688$      404,300$      
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          75,287$         47,598$          25,333$        10,200$        
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$       -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$       1,030,000$     680,000$      470,000$      


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,834,270$     2,479,302$    2,390,244$     2,096,463$   1,928,591$   


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$    1,091,314$     1,091,314$   1,091,314$   
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $     1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$    1,265,000$     974,000$      807,000$      
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$         40,000$          40,000$        40,000$        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$    2,396,314$     2,105,314$   1,938,314$   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        142,956$        (7,012)$          (6,070)$           (8,851)$         (9,723)$         


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,673,421$     2,286,409$    1,250,339$     561,489$      81,766$        
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$               
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,438,981$     2,286,409$    1,250,339$     561,489$      81,766$        
* Net Operating Revenues includes Transfers to Other Funds plus Surplus/Deficit minus CDRC and Transfers to In-House Construction and Building Fund
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to max of $404,300 to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP Planning Budget, Including Rate Increase 


EXPENSES







 Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Evaluation of Water Rate Scenarios 


FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE Rate Increase


Water Use and Base Rate         1,796,000 1,770,000 1,823,100    1,877,793     1,934,127   1,992,151   3.0%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge**            227,000 227,000 227,000       283,750        354,688      404,300      see ** below


  OTHER REVENUE            131,000 119,200          120,000       110,000        110,000      110,000      
TOTAL REVENUE 2,154,000       2,116,200       2,170,100      2,271,543       2,398,814     2,506,451     


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS         1,035,010 1,051,800       1,083,354    1,115,855     1,149,330   1,183,810   3% increase
SERVICES & SUPPLIES            524,402 536,080          541,441       546,855        552,324      557,847      1% increase
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,559,412       1,587,880       1,624,795      1,662,710       1,701,654     1,741,657     


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 594,588          528,320          545,305         608,833          697,160        764,793        
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES                5,700 1,050 20,000         20,000          20,000        20,000        one truck per 2 years
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS           547,000 507,000          510,305     573,833      662,160      729,793    


Transfer to CIRF            320,000           280,000           283,305            290,083          307,473          325,493 
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 2,112,112 2,095,930 2,155,100 2,256,543 2,383,814 2,491,451


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 41,888            20,270            15,000           15,000            15,000          15,000          
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        260,270$        258,305$       265,083$        282,473$      300,493$      
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$       782,000$        782,000$      782,000$      
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$       283,750$        354,688$      404,300$      
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          75,287$         47,819$          26,015$        11,599$        
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$       -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$       1,030,000$     680,000$      470,000$      


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,834,270$     2,488,152$    2,408,652$     2,125,175$   1,968,392$   


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$    1,091,314$     1,091,314$   1,091,314$   
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $     1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$    1,265,000$     974,000$      807,000$      
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$         40,000$          40,000$        40,000$        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$    2,396,314$     2,105,314$   1,938,314$   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        142,956$        1,838$           12,338$          19,861$        30,078$        


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,673,421$     2,295,259$    1,277,597$     617,459$      177,537$      
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$               
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,438,981$     2,295,259$    1,277,597$     617,459$      177,537$      
* Net Operating Revenues includes Transfers to Other Funds plus Surplus/Deficit minus CDRC and Transfers to In-House Construction and Building Fund
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to max of $404,300 to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP Planning Budget, Including Rate Increase 


EXPENSES







 Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Evaluation of Water Rate Scenarios 


FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE Rate Increase


Water Use and Base Rate         1,796,000 1,770,000 1,831,950    1,896,068     1,962,431   2,031,116   3.5%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge**            227,000 227,000 227,000       283,750        354,688      404,300      see ** below


  OTHER REVENUE            131,000 119,200          120,000       110,000        110,000      110,000      
TOTAL REVENUE 2,154,000       2,116,200       2,178,950      2,289,818       2,427,118     2,545,416     


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS         1,035,010 1,051,800       1,083,354    1,115,855     1,149,330   1,183,810   3% increase
SERVICES & SUPPLIES            524,402 536,080          541,441       546,855        552,324      557,847      1% increase
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,559,412       1,587,880       1,624,795      1,662,710       1,701,654     1,741,657     


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 594,588          528,320          554,155         627,108          725,464        803,759        
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES                5,700 1,050 20,000         20,000          20,000        20,000        one truck per 2 years
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS           547,000 507,000          519,155     592,108      690,464      768,759    


Transfer to CIRF            320,000           280,000           292,155            308,358          335,777          364,459 
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 2,112,112 2,095,930 2,163,950 2,274,818 2,412,118 2,530,416


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 41,888            20,270            15,000           15,000            15,000          15,000          
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        260,270$        267,155$       283,358$        310,777$      339,459$      
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$       782,000$        782,000$      782,000$      
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$       283,750$        354,688$      404,300$      
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          75,287$         48,040$          26,699$        13,007$        
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$       -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$       1,030,000$     680,000$      470,000$      


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,834,270$     2,497,002$    2,427,149$     2,154,163$   2,008,766$   


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$    1,091,314$     1,091,314$   1,091,314$   
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $     1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$    1,265,000$     974,000$      807,000$      
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$         40,000$          40,000$        40,000$        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$    2,396,314$     2,105,314$   1,938,314$   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        142,956$        10,688$         30,835$          48,849$        70,452$        


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,673,421$     2,304,109$    1,304,944$     673,793$      274,244$      
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$               
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,438,981$     2,304,109$    1,304,944$     673,793$      274,244$      
* Net Operating Revenues includes Transfers to Other Funds plus Surplus/Deficit minus CDRC and Transfers to In-House Construction and Building Fund
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to max of $404,300 to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP Planning Budget, Including Rate Increase 


EXPENSES





		Item V-B Rate Scenario Analyses

		Meeting Date : April 1, 2010 



		Item V-B.1 Rate Scenarios Capital and Operating Budget - 10-11 

		Rate Scen FY11Increase

		Rate Scen 2%

		Rate Scen 2.5% 

		Rate Scen 3%

		Rate Scen 3.5%








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE UNNEEDED DISTRICT LANDS STRATEGY   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on the progress of the Land 
Management Committee regarding an Unneeded District Lands Strategy and provide 
direction to the Committee and General Manager.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 


The Land Management Committee has had several meetings over the past four 
months and working with the Committee the General Manager has made 
progress in moving forward with an Unneeded District Lands Strategy.  Activities 
in the past months include: 
 
• Acquired maps of key areas from Sonoma County PRMD 
• Phone contact with several public agencies and non-profit organizations 


interested in open space land management 
o Open Space District Acquisitions 
o Monte Rio Recreation and Parks District 
o Russian River Recreation and Parks District (Guerneville) 
o Sonoma Land Trust 
o Sonoma County Bicycle Coalition 
 


• Discussion with local real estate broker  
• Reviewed Master Plans for local Recreation and Parks Districts – both have 


elements for trails and river access 
 
In contacting the various people above, interest in District lands, at least some 
parcels, is being generated.  Observations of this interest includes: 
 


• The local Recreation and Parks Districts are interested in river access 
locations. 


• The local Districts have some interest in the larger parcels for trails 
purposes, but that is a more long-term objective. 


• There is a long-term interest in improving the trails situation in this area 
for attracting tourism; it also fits in with the area becoming a biking 
center. 







DISCUSSION/ACTION RE UNNEEDED DISTRICT LANDS STRATEGY 2   
April 1, 2010 
                                                                 


 


• Looking at maps, District lands can play an important role in connecting 
longer trail segments. 


• Some smaller District parcels may have value if sold on open market, most 
would not have general value but may have limited value to neighbors. 


• The Monte Rio properties have limited development value because of septic 
system issues, but still may have value to neighbors.   


• Local brokers would be interested in representing the District in selling 
these parcels.  A process is needed for broker selection. 


• The local Recreation and Parks Districts may have some funding for parcel 
acquisition; the open-space agencies and organizations do not appear to 
be in an acquisition mode (at least with available funding) at this time.   


 
A few of these activities are moving along and the Board needs to give some 
direction on strategy and which approaches should be used.  Exhibit A includes all 
unneeded District parcels.  An earlier version included parcels that are currently 
being used by the District or have some long-term potential for use.  Those 
parcels are not included in this discussion. 
 


• The Beach access parcels seem to have the most interest.  The Recreation 
and Parks Districts may want these parcels to remain in public agency 
ownership.  At least one parcel has private interest.   


• There is conceptional interest in the larger parcels for participation in a 
larger regional trails effort.  There does not seem to be an urgency in this. 


• There may be little funding available for the open space agencies and 
organizations to acquire District lands.  Transferring unneeded lands for 
little or no income in return will still have the benefit of keeping the lands 
available for community purposes.     


• Local real estate brokers may have viable strategies for marketing the 
smaller District parcels.  This current real estate market is a buyer’s 
market. 


 
Possible District Unneeded Lands Strategy 
 
Purpose:  The District will divest itself of unneeded property with the purposes of 


• Maintaining community values of river access and open space, 
• Reducing District liability, 
• Reducing staff time dealing with property issues, 
• Producing income which is a goal but not a requirement. 


 
1.  Explore river access and trail possibilities with local Recreation and Park 


Districts 
2. Keep revenue producing parcels (Mount Jackson tower sites) 
3. For larger, back country parcels, follow up with open space agencies, if 


R&P Districts are not interested.   
4. Engage broker to market remainder of unneeded properties. 
 







Revised 03/1/10 
 


Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Unneeded Real Property 
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


2a 070-262-038 14829 CANYON 4 RD 0811 Lot -- 6350 sf M/L – not needed 


2a 071-010-019 14610 REDWOOD AVE  0000 Redwood Tank Site -- (130,000 gal.) 
2,800 sf, small for a sale, but can 
be combined with 030-020 below 


2a 071-025-022 NORTHERN AVENUE NEAR 
EASTERN 


0811 Parcel adjacent - under Russian 
River (Old Drake Well Field) 
20,000 sf M/L Not sure how much 
of this is out of river 


2a 071-030-020 14610 REDWOOD LN 0811 Redwood Tank Site (Adjacent to 071-
010-019) 
12,500 sf M/L not needed 


2a 071-210-014 NEELEY RD 0811 Unknown use 
22,500 sf M/L  not needed 


2a 071-210-017 NEELEY RD 0811 Unknown use 
5,200 sf M/L  not needed 


2a 071-220-068 17448 RIVER LN 0811 (Old Vacation Beach Well Site) 
25,000 sf M/L  Current interest 


2a 071-260-041 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank)(2 tanks -- 140,000 
gal.) 
4,000 sf lot not needed 


2a 071-260-048 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
2.5 acres  not needed 


2a 071-260-050 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
5,300 sf lot  not needed 


2a 071-260-051 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
3 acres  not needed 


2a 072-160-006 14335 WOODS AVE  0811 Near Summit 
5,000 sf lot 


2a 094-130-009 21295 HWY. 116  .5 acres, ACQUIRED in 2/21/02 from 
the Torr’s as part of the settlement of 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Unneeded Real Property 
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


the Torr v. SSWD litigation  (PRICE: 
$48,000.00) Not needed, May not 
have much value, probable septic 
system issues 


2a 095-011-014 21944 MOSCOW  RD 0811 Unknown 
10,000 sf M/L not needed, septic 
system issues, nice lot.   


2a 095-022-029 21914 MONTE VISTA TER  0811 4,500 sf M/L  not needed, probable 
septic system issues 


2a 095-022-030 21916 MONTE VISTA TER  0811 2,500 sf M/L  not needed, probable 
septic system issues 


2a 095-023-012 MONTE VISTA TER  0811 1.03 acres M/L  not needed, 
probable septic system issues 


2a 095-023-013 21907 MONTE VISTA TER  0942 Timber Land (Adjacent to 095-023-
012) 4,000 sf M/L  not needed, 
probable septic system issues 


2a 095-120-001 9155 HARRISON GULCH 0811 Upper Harrison Tank (abandoned)  
2.82 acres  not needed 


2a 097-130-008 MOSCOW RD 0811 Timber Land 20,000 sf M/L, probable 
septic system issues 


2b 070-070-031 14141 WOODLAND DR 0811 Pipeline Sunset/Woodland (5’ wide), 
pipeline abandoned? 


2b 070-294-008 14685 EAGLE NEST LN 0811 2,100 sf M/L   


2b 071-150-011 15877 DRAKE RD 0003 Near Birkhoffer; Unknown use 
700 sf M/L  not needed 


2b 071-180-009 NEELEY RD 0811 Unknown use 
2,250 sf  not needed 


2b 071-191-013 BETWEEN GUERNEWOOD 
ROAD AND THE RUSSIAN 
RIVER 


0811 Old Well Field off Guernewood 
22,500 sf M/L  Lot size is only 
2,500; not much value as in flood 
plain with no direct access 


2b 072-014-014 Way out on Old Caz 0811 Small lot (Summerland Tract)  not 


Page 2 of 4 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Unneeded Real Property 
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


needed 


2b 072-014-042 ditto 0811 Small lot (Summerland Tract)  not 
needed 


2b 072-060-007 HIDDEN VALLEY RD 0811 (Old tank site -- no longer needed) 
2,600 sf M/L 


2b 072-216-008 UPPER TERRACE/SANTA 
ROSA AVE 


0811 2,100 sf M/L   


2b 096-180-036 LAUREL DELL AVE  0811 Russian River Meadows - abandoned 
well site 
600 sf M/L  get rid of valving, etc. 


2c 069-060-004 NORTH OF GUERNEVILLE 
16505 Sweetwater Springs 
Rd 


 Timber Land (Not in District) 
240 acres 


2c 069-060-041 


 


NEAR SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS ROAD (NORTH 
OF GUERNEVILLE) 


0811 TPZ 
84 acres  need radio service but 
not land; income from antenna 
contracts 


2c 070-350-003 Northeast of Rio Nido  TPZ 
40 acres  Berry easement parcel 


2c 070-350-008 Northeast of Rio Nido2222  TPZ 
40 acres  Off Canyon 1 


2c 072-021-008 WEST OF OLD CAZADERO 
RD 


0558 42.4 acres in TPZ 


2c 072-021-014 19478 HIDDEN VALLEY 0811 Timber Land 
14.2 acres (adjacent to 072-021-019) 
investigate to determine need 


2c 074-200-002 South of Monte Rio, west of 
Bohemian Hwy 


0558 76.11 acres TPZ 
(Adjacent to 074-200-004) 


2c 074-200-004 Adjacent to 074-200-002  TPZ 
16 acres 


2c 097-130-010 MOSCOW RD 0557 Timber Land 


Page 3 of 4 







Page 4 of 4 


Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Unneeded Real Property 
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


236.06 acres 


2c 097-130-011 MOSCOW RD 0557 Timber Land 
56 acres 


2c 105-240-007 CAZADERO  37.7 acres, no timber rights (Not in 
District)  Next to 72-021-008.   


 





		Item V-C District Lands Strategy

		Meeting Date : April 1, 2010 



		Item V-C.1 Exhibit A SSWD Unneeded Real Property List Rev3-1-10






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  CHANGES TO POLICY NUMBERS 3020, 3080, AND 3090 OF 
THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES PROVIDING FOR REMEDIES 
FOR WATER BILL NON-PAYMENT AND METER TAMPERING 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce by reading of title Ordinance 44, Making 


Changes to Policy Numbers 3020, 3080, and 3090 of the District’s Policy an 
Procedures Providing for Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter 
Tampering, and place on the May Agenda for adoption. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal, but the proposed ordinance may help reduce the number of 


accounts referred to our collections agency and the proposed reinstatement fee 
and expansion to our tampering fee will add a small amount of revenue to our 
Water Sales. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
District staff have identified four scenarios that are not addressed in our District 
policies: 
 


Scenario 1.  We send a property owner to collections for non-payment of 
their bill.  The owner later wishes to reopen the account.  Currently, we 
require the owner to pay off the collections agency and tender a $150 refundable 
collections deposit to the District before water will be restored to the account.  
However, the District still loses money because the collections agency keeps 40% 
of what they collect as their fee.  New policy 3020.121 would to require the owner 
to pay a reinstatement fee to the District in addition to the $150 collections 
deposit before they can reopen the account.  The reinstatement fee would recoup 
the 40% fee retained by the collections agency.   
 
Scenario 2.  Same situation as Scenario 1, except this time the owner has 
been terminated for non-payment but has a tenant who wishes to reopen 
the account.  Currently, the tenant would not be required to pay the owner’s 
past due amount or to tender a deposit.  Under new policy 3080.25, however, 
water would not be restored to the account until all past charges were paid.  In 
this situation, if the account had already been referred to a collections agency, the 
District would lose the 40% collections agency fee and would not have a deposit 
on file, but it would encourage the owner of the property to take responsibility for 
their past due account. 
 







ORDINANCE 43, Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 2 
April 1, 2010 


 


Scenario 3.  Same situation as Scenario 1, except this time the owner has 
lost the property to a bank.  The economy has triggered a rash of foreclosures 
in the District.  Currently, the District has no policy that requires the foreclosing 
bank or real estate agent acting on behalf of a foreclosing bank to pay the past 
due amount of the foreclosed owner.  New policy 3080.25 would require the bank 
or their real estate agent to deal with those past charges if they wanted water 
restored to the property for clean-up or resale.  Policy 3080.25 is less drastic than 
filing a utility lien, but much easier to implement and, we believe, more effective.   
 
Scenario 4.  The District discovers an inactive account has been turned on 
and is using water, and may have damaged our meter/parts in the 
process.  Currently, policy 3090.20 only provides for assessing tampering fees to 
active customers.  However, sometimes District investigation leaves staff with a 
very good idea of who tampered with our equipment.  New policy 3090.20(e) 
would give the General Manager discretion to assess a tampering fee to the last 
customer or the owner if it makes sense based on the District’s investigation.   


 
Legal counsel has reviewed Ordinance 44.  If adopted, the new policies would 
tighten up District remedies for errant customers.   







ORDINANCE NO. 44 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT MAKING 
CHANGES TO POLICY NUMBERS 3020, 3080 AND 3090 OF THE DISTRICT’S 


POLICY AND PROCEDURES PROVIDING FOR REMEDIES FOR WATER BILL NON-
PAYMENT AND METER TAMPERING 


 
  
  


WHEREAS, water bill nonpayment and meter tampering are ongoing issues that add extra 
costs onto the Sweetwater Springs Water District and its water bill paying customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff have determined that small changes to the District’s Policies and 
Procedures can firm up the procedures for addressing water bill nonpayment and meter 
tampering in a manner fair to all District customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has established policies for tenants nonpayment of water bills, but 
said policies do not directly address property owners’ nonpayment of water bills; and  
 
WHEREAS, the tampering with meters is frequently connected to nonpayment of water bills, 
in that nonpaying occupants of a property may tamper with its existing meter; and  
 
WHEREAS, the policies and procedure changes stated below address these issues in a fair 
way.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
Section 1. Policy Number 3020.121, Reinstatement Fee is hereby added as follows:  
 
 3020.121 Reinstatement Fee.  A reinstatement fee will be charged to any 
Owner, as defined in Section 3070.70(A), who wishes to reopen an account that has 
been referred to a Collections Agency due to non-payment by that Owner.  The 
reinstatement fee shall be equal to the amount paid by the District to the Collections 
Agency to collect past due charges on the account.  The reinstatement fee shall be 
in addition to the account set-up fee and a Collections deposit, as defined in Section 
3020.160.  
 
Section 2. Policy Number 3080.25 is hereby added as follows:  
 
 3080.25 Termination for Non-Payment May be Grounds for Not Re-
Opening an Account until Past Charges have been Paid.  An account whose last 
customer was the Owner of the property that is terminated for non-payment under 
3080.20(a) above shall remain inactive (Closed) and not have water service restored 
until all past charges have been paid unless the property has changed Owners and 
the new Owner is not a bank. 
 







Ordinance No. 44. Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 2 
April 1, 2010 


Section 3. Policy Number 3090.20 (e) is hereby added as follows:  
 
 3090.20 Damage to District's Meter:  It is unlawful for any person to 
remove, replace, alter or damage any water meter or components thereof, including, 
but not limited to, the meter face, its dials or other water-usage indicators, and any 
flow restricting device installed pursuant to this Code. Tampering is defined to 
include the unauthorized operation of District valves, meter stop or other property as 
well as the installation of "jumpers" or connection to a service connection for the 
purpose of unauthorized acquisition of water.  If a consumer removes, replaces, 
alters, damages or tampers with a meter, service pipe or other property of the 
District, the customer shall pay the following charges: 
 
  a.  A $150.00 tampering fee;  
 
  b.  Material cost plus fifteen percent handling charge for replacement 
parts; 
 
  c.  Labor costs plus applicable overheads. 
 
  d.  This section also applies to internal meter damage caused by flows 
in excess of meter operation limits.  In such event District may install a flow restrictor 
to reduce the flow rate to maintain safe meter operation limits.  A fifty dollar ($50.00) 
fee will be charged for the installation, or removal, of a flow restrictor. 
 
  e. If tampering occurs on a Closed or an Inactive account, a 
tampering fee and/or time and materials costs may be assessed to either the last 
customer or the property owner if, in the discretion of the General Manager, such 
fees and/or costs are appropriate based on all the facts and circumstances. 
 


Section 4.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The Board 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was introduced this 1st day of April, 2010, on roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Wanda Smith:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 







Ordinance No. 44. Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 3 
April 1, 2010 


     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 







Exhibit A.  Ordinance 44 Policies and Procedures Changes in Context 
 
3020.120 Payment of Prior Charges or Liabilities:    The district reserves the 
right to lien properties on the tax rolls for unpaid water charges in a manner 
adopted by resolution of the board which will be periodically reviewed. 
 
 3020.121 Reinstatement Fee.  A reinstatement fee will be charged to 
any Owner, as defined in Section 3070.70(A), who wishes to reopen an account 
that has been referred to a Collections Agency due to non-payment by that 
Owner.  The reinstatement fee shall be equal to the amount paid by the District to 
the Collections Agency to collect past due charges on the account.  The 
reinstatement fee shall be in addition to the account set-up fee and a Collections 
deposit, as defined in Section 3020.160. 
 
 3020.130 Charge for Turnons:  Ten dollars ($20.00) will be charged as 
an account set-up fee to each applicant requesting service.  Such fee shall be 
required each time service is initiated in a customer’s name and shall be paid 
within twenty-five (25) days of the initiation of service.    
 
 A charge of fifty dollars ($50.00) will be made for the restoration of service 
where  such service has been interrupted due to non payment of charges due the 
district or at the request of a customer that the service be turned off, or by District 
personnel due to a leak.  In addition, a fifty dollar ($50.00) charge will be 
assessed when a customer requests service personnel to their premises and it is 
determined that the problem was not a result of the operation of District facilities.  
The fifty dollar ($50.00) charge shall be waived in the event the water is turned 
off by District personnel in order to allow the customer to repair a leak where a 
gate valve on the customer’s side near the meter is or will be installed as part of 
the repair.  Such waiver shall only be allowed one time in any twenty-four (24) 
month period.  District personnel may turn on a service after regular business 
hours provided the customer agrees to pay a fee of seventy ($70.00) dollars, plus 
the cost of time and materials after one (1) hour. 
 
 Under no circumstances will field operations crew be allowed to collect 
amounts due directly from customers, except when directed by the General 
Manager to do so.  Fees under this section may only be waived by the General 
Manager in cases where an error was made by the District in handling the 
account. 
 
 3020.140 Charges for Installation of New Service Connections:  Upon 
approval of an application for a new service connection and payment by the 
applicant of the service installation charge and connection fees set forth herein, 
the district will make all necessary installations.  All deposits made for such 
charges and fees shall be credited to the parcel of land to be served, and shall 
run with said parcel of land.  
 







Exhibit A.  Ordinance 44 Policies and Procedures Changes in Context       2 
April 1, 2010   


  
 


*     *     * 
 


 3080.20 Grounds for Termination:  The following shall be grounds for 
termination of a consumer's water service: 
 
  a. Nonpayment of any delinquent water bill, or other sum due 
the district from the consumer with respect to any service to the property served 
by the service proposed to be terminated. 
 
  b. Failure of the consumer or applicant to provide information 
for aid in the development of, or execute the necessary documents for water 
service. 
 
  c. Failure of the consumer to comply with any district  
Ordinance, rule, regulation, order or decision with respect to the service 
proposed to be terminated. 
 
  d. Failure of the consumer to comply with any watershed 
protection agreement or other contract entered into as a condition of the granting 
of the service proposed to be terminated. 
 
 3080.25 Termination for Non-Payment May be Grounds for Not Re-
Opening an Account until Past Charges have been Paid.  An account whose last 
customer was the Owner of the property that is terminated for non-payment 
under 3080.20(a) above shall remain inactive (Closed) and not have water 
service restored until all past charges have been paid unless the property has 
changed Owners and the new Owner is not a bank. 
 
 3080.30 Notice Procedures for Termination: The District must provide 
Notice prior to terminating a customer’s water service.  Notice may not be sent 
until twenty-five (25) days after the date the District billing was mailed.  After such 
date, said Notice must be made at least 10 calendar days before water service is 
terminated, plus an additional five (5) calendar days if said Notice is mailed.  
Mailed Notice shall be sent by first class mail to the customer, at the post office 
address furnished to the District by the customer.  Said Notice shall set forth the 
following: 
 
  a. The consumer’s name; address; account number, and 
address of property being served, 
 
  b. The location of the water service to be terminated, 
 
  c. The reasons for termination, including the amount of any 
delinquency; 







Exhibit A.  Ordinance 44 Policies and Procedures Changes in Context       3 
April 1, 2010   


 
  d. The date on or after which water service will be terminated, 
or the date on or after which water service will be terminated if a specified 
payment, arrangement for payment, or specific corrective action is not made or 
compliance instituted with a specified district rule or regulation. 
 
  e. A statement, in case of termination for nonpayment of a 
residential water bill, that the customer may initiate a written protest or request an 
investigation concerning service or charges, or may request amortization or 
payment arrangements of any unpaid charges if a written request for such action 
is delivered to the district within fifteen (15) days of receiving the disputed bill or 
within ten (10) days of the mailing of the notice described herein. 
 
  f. A statement in case of termination for nonpayment of a 
water bill, stating the telephone number of a district representative who can 
provide additional information or institute arrangements for payment or the 
availability of financial assistance, if applicable; 
 
  g. The telephone number of a representative of the district who 
will provide additional information  or institute arrangements for payment.   
 
 In the case of termination of service to a multi-unit residential structure, 
mobile home park or labor camp, where the owner, manager or employer is listed 
by the district as the consumer of record, or where the district furnishes service 
through a master meter, the district shall comply with the provisions of 
Government Code Section 60371 regarding the actual user of service. 
 


* * * * * 
 


 3090.20 Damage to District's Meter:  It is unlawful for any person to 
remove, replace, alter or damage any water meter or components thereof, 
including, but not limited to, the meter face, its dials or other water-usage 
indicators, and any flow restricting device installed pursuant to this Code. 
Tampering is defined to include the unauthorized operation of District valves, 
meter stop or other property as well as the installation of "jumpers" or connection 
to a service connection for the purpose of unauthorized acquisition of water.  If a 
consumer removes, replaces, alters, damages or tampers with a meter, service 
pipe or other property of the District, the customer shall pay the following 
charges: 
 
  a.  A $150.00 tampering fee;  
 
  b.  Material cost plus fifteen percent handling charge for 
replacement parts; 
 
  c.  Labor costs plus applicable overheads. 







Exhibit A.  Ordinance 44 Policies and Procedures Changes in Context       4 
April 1, 2010   


 
  d.  This section also applies to internal meter damage caused by 
flows in excess of meter operation limits.  In such event District may install a flow 
restrictor to reduce the flow rate to maintain safe meter operation limits.  A fifty 
dollar ($50.00) fee will be charged for the installation, or removal, of a flow 
restrictor. 
 
  e. If tampering occurs on a Closed or an Inactive account, a 
tampering fee and/or time and materials costs may be assessed to either the last 
customer or the property owner if, in the discretion of the General Manager, such 
fees and/or costs are appropriate based on all the facts and circumstances. 
 





		Item V-D Owner Staff report re Ord 44, Owner non-payment issues

		Meeting Date : April 1, 2010 



		Item V-D.1 ORD 44 - OwnerNonPayment

		Item V-D.2 Exhibit A MeterTamperingOrdinance






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF CONTRACT TO REPLACE 
FILTER MEDIA IN MONTE RIO GREEN SAND FILTER   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 10-08 which waives Policy 
3700.20 requiring a competitive bid process for work and improvements where the 
work and improvement are estimated to cost more than $25,000, and authorizes the 
General Manager to approve a contract with ERS Industrial Services (ERS) for an 
amount not to exceed $27,983.64 to replace the filter media in the Monte Rio green 
sand filter with an amount of $5,000 for extra services, and adds $32,983.64 to line 
item 6235 Treatment Supplies/Well Repairs of the FY10 Operating Budget.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $27,983.64 plus extra services up to $5,000. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 


The Monte Rio green sand filter is located at the Monte Rio well field site and 
filters all water pumped at that site to remove iron and manganese, as required 
by the California Department of Public Health.  The current media has been in use 
for eight years, the filter gets inspected on an annual basis, and an inspection in 
November 2009 by ERS determined that the media needed replacement.  ERS 
gave a quote of $27,983.64 to do the work.   
 
As noted above filtration is required by the Department of Public Health to 
remove iron and manganese from District well water for the Monte Rio system.  
The District has a similar requirement for the Guerneville system and for that 
system we use a filter using pyrolucite media.  The pyrolucite media has a longer 
media life expectancy and is easier to keep in service.  This filter technology 
would be expensive to install at the Monte Rio site.   
 
In the 4 months since the ERS inspection report, staff have investigated options 
to the maintenance recommended by ERS and have attempted to get quotes and 
opinions for the media replacement work, and have looked into the cost and 
process for replacing the green sand filter with a pyrolucite filter similar to what 
is being done for the Guerneville system.  Staff was able to get one firm to give a 
cost quote for the work – that came in at $32,704.  The cost of replacing the 
green sand filter with a pyrolucite filter was estimated to cost approximately 
$200,000 and would involved considerable reengineering of the Monte Rio filter 
site.   







APPROVAL OF CONTRACT TO REPLACE FILTER MEDIA IN MONTE RIO GREEN 
SAND FILTER  2   
April 1, 2010 
                                                                 


 


 
Through all this investigation staff have determined that keeping with the green 
sand filter technology is the reasonable approach at this time and the ERS quote 
is the lowest cost responsible quote we are likely to get.  District Policy 3700.20 
states that for work of this kind shall be let pursuant to competitive bids and 
states a process that includes advertising the bids, opening sealed bids, and 
awarding the contract to the lowest responsible bidder.  Such a process is not 
reasonable in this circumstance because of the specialized nature of the work.  
There are only a few contractors who replace media in green sand filters, staff 
made a concerted effort over the past 3 months to get price quotes from 
contractors other than the firm that does the annual inspection on the Monte Rio 
filter, and only one firm gave a price quote and that was higher than the price 
quoted by ERS.   
 
The staff recommendation includes a provision for an additional $5,000 for extra 
services.  The ERS price quote was given based on known conditions.  It is 
possible that once the work proceeds a situation may occur that requires work 
beyond what is expected based on the initial investigation.   
 
This work was not included in the revised FY10 Budget.  The end of year 
projection shows a surplus of $41,888.  Staff recommends and Resolution 10-08 
includes a budget revision adding $32,983.64 to line item 6235 Treatment 
Supplies/Well Repairs.   
 
Staff request that the procedure in Policy 3700.20 be waived for this contract as 
following this procedure would not result in lower costs for the District and that  
a contract be awarded to ERS to replace the green sand filter media in the Monte 
Rio filter.  This should last for approximately 8-10 more years.  Replacement of 
the Monte Rio filter with a new filter using pyrolucite technology, or something 
similar, should be included in a future capital improvement program so that it can 
be done with appropriate assessment and be ready to go when this filter next 
needs a major overhaul.   
 







Resolution No. 10-08 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  WAIVING POLICY 3700.20 AND APPROVING A  


CONTRACT FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF FILTER MEDIA FOR THE MONTE RIO 
FILTER   


 
 WHEREAS, the filter media in the Monte Rio filter is in need of replacement, 
based on an inspection in November 2009 by ERS Industrial Services (ERS), a firm that 
specializes in green sand filter maintenance, including replacement of  filter media; and 
 


WHEREAS, filter media replacement is specialized with few contractors available 
and qualified to do this type of work; and 


 
WHEREAS, staff have spent the months of December 2009, and January and 


February 2010 looking for contractors who are able and willing to provide these services 
and to get confirming opinions that the work needs to be done; and 


 
WHEREAS, staff have determined, based on recommendations by experts, that 


the work does need to be done without delays that would result from a from a formal 
bidding procedure; and  


 
WHEREAS, staff solicited informal bids from 3 contractors to do this specialized 


work and two informal bids were received in response to the solicitation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the price quote given by ERS ($27,983.64) is lower than the one 


other price quote that staff was able to attain; and 
 
WHEREAS, changing the filter technology to one similar to what is used for the 


Guerneville system would not be timely and would cost much more; and 
 
WHEREAS, the price quote given by ERS is higher than the $25,000 threshold of 


the District purchasing policy that directs for advertised competitive bids; and  
 
 WHEREAS, staff have determined that that process would not work for a 
contract for work of this specialized nature and that considerable effort beyond the 
advertising process has been expended searching out possible competitive bids; and 
 


WHEREAS, funds for this contract exist in the projected FY10 Budget in the  
projected Operating Budget surplus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors hereby finds that it is in the best 
interest of the District to waive the bidding procedures of District Policy No. 3700.20 and 
to proceed instead in accordance with the informal quotation procedures described in 
District Policy No. 3700.70; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of 
Directors hereby: 
 


1. Waives the bidding procedures of Policy 3700.20 et sequitur based on the 
research and solicitation efforts undertaken by staff and instead approves the informal 
quotation procedures described in District Policy No. 3700.70 for this transaction. 







Resolution 10-08. Monte Rio Filter Media Replacement  2 
April 1, 2010 


 
2. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute a contract with ERS in the 


amount of $27,983.64 to replace the filter media at the Monte Rio filter.  
 
3. Authorizes an additional amount of $5,000 for contract contingencies. 
 
4. Approves a FY 2010 budget amendment in the amount of $32,983.64 for 


Operating Budget line item 6235 Treatment Supplies/Well Repairs to cover the expenditure 
for this contract.   


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on April 1, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-E Approval of Contract for Monte Rio Filter Maintenance

		Meeting Date : April 1, 2010 



		Item V-E.1-Resolution 10-08 Award of Monte Rio Filter Contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 1, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February were 14,414 units 


(33.1 AF) and production was 57.1 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales are 
identical and production is more (33.1 and 55.2 AF, respectively).  Of note, 
during the 2 month billing cycle the District had one customer leak that was 
approximately 2,000 units (4.6 AF), the largest known customer leak in 
District history.  The attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average 
since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains to reduce leaks in the 
system.  In January we had 16 total leaks and spent 76 man-hours on them.   
That’s more leaks and man-hours than last month (January) and more leaks 
man-hours than February one year ago.  One possible explanation is that 
the rain in January hid many leaks that were later discovered in February.   
Figure 2 shows leak history and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 
2001 and continues to show a declining trend for both leaks and man hours, 
although the last two months have not followed that trend.     


 
4. Rainfall.  Figure 3 is the rainfall chart for this year starting in October.  The 


data shown in this chart is approximate – I have a number of sources for 
Guerneville rainfall, all differ slightly.  This chart is using the published 
National Weather Service Coop rainfall data, updated for the past two  
months by Weather Underground information which states to be from the 
Guerneville Fire Station which is also supposed to be the source of data for 
the Coop Program and the Press Democrat, but which all differ slightly.  I 
believe it’s approximately correct and gives us a decent picture about what’s 
going on this year.  March rainfall has been below average for the month 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
April 1, 2010 


again.  January, of course, was the month that drove the good results for 
this year.   This remains a positive rainfall year (and rainfall is expected for 
the end of March (again) and is not accounted for in this chart).   We are not 
currently at average in Guerneville, according to my calculations, but the 
Russian River watershed is well hydrated, and the Russian River reservoirs 
are basically full.  Regardless of rainfall, Sonoma County Water Agency will 
be asking for a Temporary Urgency Change for summer flows because of the 
regulatory requirements of the Biological Opinion on the operations of Warm 
Springs and Coyote Dams (see agenda item V-A). 


 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1.  An initial meeting with W.A. Forde Associates was held 


on March 26, 2010.  Construction is expected to start on April 19, with main 
replacement construction starting on Riverlands Road.   


 
6. Gantt Chart.   April in the Gantt Chart shows that the draft budget should be 


presented to the Board (done), construction starting for CIP IV-B, Project 1 
(starting April 19), and labor negotiations starting (that has happened).     


  
 


  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Nov-
09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 


Sales
Production
%Difference


A
F)


(


)
%(


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
April 1, 2010 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500
B


re
ak


s


700


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


-


50


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


-


350


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2010







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-09
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-09


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


2010 Urban Water Management Plan December-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-10


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: April 1, 2010 



